
      
             

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 
II. ROLL CALL 

A. Invocation 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Approve August, September, & November 2021 minutes 

 
 

III. REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON AGENDA ITEMS (3 Minutes) 
 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acknowledge the September & October 2021 Tourist Development Tax Collections 

Reports 

B. Approve recommendation to the BOCC to award the agreement for the Beach Trash 

and Grooming to Coastal Parasail 

 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
A.  Northwest Florida Beaches International Airport (ECP) Update, Mr. Parker McClellan 
 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A.  Sports Park Update, Mr. Jason Clement and Mr. Bob Stout, Sports Facilities Companies 
B.  Workforce Development Update, Mr. Dan Rowe 

 
VII. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

 
 

VIII. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA 
COMBINED BOARD MEETING 

Bay County Tourist Development Council 
Panama City Beach Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. 

Panama City Beach 
Tuesday, December 14, 2021                                           9:00 a.m.                     Council Chambers, PCB City Hall 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, November 09, 2021 

Page 1 of 4

MOTIONS PASSED AT THE COMBINED BOARD MEETING, Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Approved June 2021 Minutes 
Mr. Patronis/Mr. Walsingham  

Approved Consent Agenda 
Mr. Griffitts/Mr. Chester 

Approved Action Item A  

Mr. Griffitts/Mr. Chester 

Approved Action Item B  

Mr. Walsingham/Mr. Phillips 

Approved Action Item C 

Mr. Phillips/Mr. Wilkes 

Approved Action Item D 

Mr. Phillips/Mr. Casto 

Approved Action Item E 

Mr. Wilkes/Mr. Walsingham 

Approved Action Item F 

Mr. Wilkes/Mr. Bailey 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, November 09, 2021 

Page 2 of 4

COMBINED BOARD MEETING 
Bay County Tourist Development Council 

Panama City Beach Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. 
Panama City Beach 

Tuesday, August 24, 2021                                     9:00 a.m.       Council Room, PCB City Hall 

Board Members Present:
Bailey, Steve (V-Chair) 
Casto, Paul 
Chester, Phil 
Griffitts, Phillip 
Patronis, Yonnie (S/T) 
Pease, Chair (Chairman)                             
Phillips, Andy 
Walsingham, Gary 
Wilkes, Buddy 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Chairman Pease called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  

II. ROLL CALL 
All nine members present at the time of Roll Call.   

A. Invocation 
                      Mr. Chester gave the Invocation. 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
Ms. Pease led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

              C.    Approve June 2021 Minutes 
Mr. Patronis moved; seconded by Mr. Walsingham to approve the minutes.   

Motion passed with unanimous vote. 

III. REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON AGENDA ITEMS (3 Minutes) 
None 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Rowe read the Consent Agenda into the record.  

A. Approve the Mexico Beach CDC FY2022 Budget and Program of Work 

B. Approve the Panama City CDC FY 2022 Budget and Program of Work 

C. Acknowledge the June 2021 Tourist Development Tax Collections Report 

D. Acknowledge the June 2021 Financial Statement 
E. Approve Renewal of the Sustainable Beaches, LLC Consulting Services Agreement & Scope of 

Work for FY 2022 
Mr.  Griffitts moved; seconded by Mr. Chester to approve the consent agenda.   
Motion passed with unanimous vote. 

V. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Discuss and consider for approval a recommendation to Bay County to execute Florida 
Department of Environment Protection Grant Agreement 22BA2, St. Andrews State Park Beach 
Restoration Project, Ms. Lisa Armbruster 

Ms. Armbruster gave a summary of the totally grant funded agreement. 
Mr.  Griffitts moved; seconded by Mr. Chester to approve.   
Motion passed with unanimous vote. 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, November 09, 2021 

Page 3 of 4

B. Discuss and consider for approval a recommendation to Bay County to execute the Memo of 
Agreement with the USACE for Addition Sand Placement for St. Andrews Restoration Project, Ms. 
Lisa Armbruster     

Ms. Armbruster gave a summary of the agreement. 
Mr.  Walsingham moved; seconded by Mr. Phillips to approve.   
Motion passed with unanimous vote. 

C. Discuss and consider for approval a recommendation to Bay County to execute the Combined 
Task Order and Notice to Proceed 001, CPE, Panama City Beaches Construction Management 
Support, Ms. Lisa Armbruster 

Ms. Armbruster gave a summary of the task order. 
Mr. Phillips moved; seconded by Mr. Wilkes to approve.   
Motion passed with unanimous vote. 

D. Discuss and consider for approval a recommendation to Bay County to execute the Combined 
Task Order and Notice to Proceed 002, with MRD Associates, Panama City Beaches 
Renourishment Construction Phase Observation and Inspection Services.   Ms. Lisa Armbruster 

Ms. Armbruster gave a summary of the task order. 
Mr. Phillips moved; seconded by Mr. Casto to approve.   
Motion passed with unanimous vote. 

E. Discuss and consider for approval the FY 2022 Panama City Beach CVB Budget and Program of 
Work 

Mr. Rowe discussed the effects of Covid19 on the planning of the FY22 budget and pow.  He highlighted significant 
areas of interest as well as awards our Marketing Team were given for their campaign during the pandemic.  He 
stated that the organization as a whole has been involved with projects, via TDC/CVB board actions, that are a 
positive impact within the community.  He said working to improve and be part of the community is a high priority 
and part of the organization’s principals going forward.  Goals going forward is to increase and exceed revenues 
during difficult times.   He said the budget is consistent with the past with some line items having some growth.    
He answered questions including that the digital media campaigns are continuing to be able to quickly shift if the 
pandemic or other things require it.   
Mr. Rowe was asked about the status of the gateway landscaping project. He informed the board about the timing 
of the architect’s renderings as well as the locations and potential funding.  He also stated that the architect will be 
working with the DOT, which includes regulation constraints. 
Mr. Wilkes moved; seconded by Mr. Walsingham to approve.   
Motion passed with unanimous vote. 

F. Discuss and consider for approval the FY 2022 Panama City Beach Sports Park Budget and 
Business Plan

Mr. Jamie Cox discussed the park’s performance and operations.  He highlighted the effect of the pandemic on 
cancellations as well as going forward.  Mr. Richard Sanders also spoke about the cancellations being caused by the 
pandemic and the effects of higher room rates on tournaments participation.   
Mr. Cox discussed the revenue including food and beverage and the growth in that line item.  He answered 
questions from the board regarding food trucks being brought in during large tournaments being a great aid. Also, 
he discussed the fees being charged to them as well as the benefit of having them.  Mr. Cox discussed his five-year 
projections that were updated to give more accurate information based on actual revenues and expenditures.   
Mr. Wilkes moved; seconded by Mr. Bailey to approve.   
Motion passed with unanimous vote. 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, November 09, 2021 

Page 4 of 4

VI. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
None 

VII. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
None 

VIII. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
Introduction of the new PCB Police & Fire Chiefs  

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 
Sharon Cook, Recording Secretary 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, November 09, 2021 

Page 1 of 3

MOTIONS PASSED AT THE COMBINED BOARD MEETING, Tuesday, September 14, 2021 

Approved July 2021 Minutes 
Mr. Patronis/Mr. Walsingham 

Approved Consent Agenda 
Mr. Walsingham/Mr. Chester 

Approved Action Item A 

Mr. Wilkes/Mr. Griffitts 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, November 09, 2021 

Page 2 of 3

COMBINED BOARD MEETING 
Bay County Tourist Development Council 

Panama City Beach Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. 
Panama City Beach 

Tuesday, September 14, 2021                              9:00 a.m.       Council Room, PCB City Hall 

Board Members Present:
Bailey, Steve (V-Chair) 
Casto, Paul 
Chester, Phil 
Griffitts, Phillip 
Patronis, Yonnie (S/T) 
Walsingham, Gary 
Wilkes, Buddy 
Pease, Clair (Chairman)                             
Board Members Absent:
Phillips, Andy 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Chairman Pease called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  

II. ROLL CALL 
Eight members present at the time of Roll Call.  Mr. Phillips was absent. 

A. Invocation 
                      Mr. Wilkes gave the Invocation. 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
Ms. Pease led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

      C.    Approve July 2021 Minutes 
Mr.  Patronis moved; seconded by Mr. Walsingham to approve the July 2021 Minutes.   

Motion passed with unanimous vote. 

III. REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON AGENDA ITEMS (3 Minutes) 
None 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Rowe read the Consent Agenda into the record.   
              A.    Acknowledge the Tourist Development Tax Collections Report 
Mr.  Walsingham moved; seconded by Mr. Chester to approve the consent agenda.   

Motion passed with unanimous vote. 

V. ACTION ITEMS 
              A.    Discuss and consider for approval the FY 2022 Panama City Beach TDC/CVB Marketing Plan, 
                      Ms. Jayna Leach & Ms. Melanie Strom 
Ms. Leach discussed the upcoming marketing plan.  She stated that the focus is to maintain momentum and stay 
aggressive in the campaigns.  She summarized the social media impact as well as to maintain flexibility with digital 
marketing.  She then introduced Ms. Anderson who then gave a summary of the creative work in the marketing 
plan.  Then Ms. Leach introduced Ms. Strom from Watagua group who also discussed the marketing plan.  She 
discussed brand awareness and competitive conquesting as a strategy as well as keeping visitors coming back.  She 
stated that one part of the plan is reaching new online audiences and monitoring online activity.  She also 
discussed the markets that are targeted and how the marketing is driven based on the change in activity in those 
markets.  Each market has a dedicated plan of action and modification of the marketing can be done accordingly. 
She reviewed the brand partners that will be used in the digital as well as print plan. 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, November 09, 2021 

Page 3 of 3

Ms. Strom discussed our PCB Pandora radio station as well as Spotify and the refreshment of those stations.  She 
also reviewed TV advertising targeting.  She also discussed the sports and events partners in digital and print in the 
plan.   Also discussed was quarterly reporting and monitoring of the success of each component of the marketing 
plan across all media platforms. 

Ms. Leach then summarized the budget and the line items of most importance as related in support of the overall 
marketing plan for FY2022.  The board made comments regarding years passed and how technology has become 
the driver in marketing.  Mr. Wilkes asked if other destinations did as well as PCB or was there overspill as a result 
of competitor’s being full.  Mr. Rowe stated that most Florida destinations did very well and the marketing plan is 
moving forward very strongly to pull visitors away from them.  He said that KeyData provides that competitor 
booking information that is then used to reposition and retarget marketing as needed.   
The Board had a discussion of the market in general then focused on the cruise market.  Mr. Rowe stated how our 
marketing plan being flexible and adaptable has driven the success during the pandemic and resurgence of the 
variants.   
Mr.  Wilkes moved; seconded by Mr. Griffitts to approve the Action Item A.   

Motion passed with unanimous vote. 

VI. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Mr. Rowe discussed three items; The beach renourishment project began on the west end of the beach, the 
Visitor’s Center/Admin building has had a new roof completed, and an hourly increase given to legal counsel 
provided the Board does not object.  He stated it had been more than five years since Mr. Sale was given an 
increase. The Board did not object. 

VII. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
NONE 

VIII. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
NONE 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 
Sharon Cook, Recording Secretary 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, December 14, 2021 

Page 1 of 4

MOTIONS PASSED AT THE COMBINED BOARD MEETING, Tuesday, November 09, 2021 

NONE 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, December 14, 2021 

Page 2 of 4

COMBINED BOARD MEETING 
Bay County Tourist Development Council 

Panama City Beach Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. 
Panama City Beach 

Tuesday, November 09, 2021                                      9:00 a.m.                    Council Room, PCB City Hall 

Board Members Present:
Bailey, Steve (V-Chair) 
Casto, Paul 
Walsingham, Gary 
Pease, Clair (Chairman)                             
Board Members Absent:
Phillips, Andy 
Chester, Phil 
Griffitts, Phillip 
Patronis, Yonnie (S/T) 
Wilkes, Buddy 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Chairman Pease called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  

II. ROLL CALL 
Four members were present at the time of Roll Call.  Mr. Rowe declared a non-quorum; no voting Action took 
place. 

A. Invocation 
                      Mr. Casto gave the Invocation. 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
Ms. Pease led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

      C.    Approve August & September 2021 minutes 
  No Motion Made; Will be brought back at the next meeting. 

III. REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON AGENDA ITEMS (3 Minutes) 
None 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
Mr. Rowe read the Consent Agenda into the record.   
              A.    Acknowledge the Tourist Development Tax Collections Report 
With no action by the Board, Mr. Rowe discussed the success of the collections for the month of September.  Also, 
he discussed the American Rescue Plan federal funding coming into the state of Florida.  The Cares Act also 
brought in funding to Florida.  He said that the Indoor Sports Center and Skills Building could possibly be partially 
funded via these funds.  He discussed the potential location of the Indoor Center as well as adding the skate park 
to the grant proposal.  Also, he said that the location of the skate park is under consideration and is being 
discussed.  He said J. Michael Brown is working on the grant proposal.  Mr. Walsingham asked the cost of the skills 
building and our match cost.  Mr. Rowe stated that it will be roughly 1.6-2 million dollars. Our match would be 
around 400,000 thousand dollars which is already in the budget in Tourism Development Projects.  He said the 
county also has funds for the skate park.  He said the skate park will be designed for competitions and will be open 
for public daily use.  
Mr. Rowe gave an update on the progress of the Indoor Sports Center.  He discussed how the center has evolved 
into a multi-use facility after Hurricane Michael.  The center will also be an Emergency Operations Center during 



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, December 14, 2021 

Page 3 of 4

and after a storm.   He said with this alteration to the plans, we will be looking to get FEMA and HUD funding 
around 14 million dollars.  
He gave a summary of how the center will be used for emergency operations, post storm business center, and 
other uses to restore our economy post storm.  He said that during non-storm time, it will also have a shared gym 
with the Walsingham Academy to help extend the public resources within Bay County. 
He then discussed the Navy, Tech Bridge Gulf Coast, that runs from Tallahassee to New Orleans.  NSA PC can also 
use the center for this Tech Bridge as well as meeting space and classified briefing rooms.   
He discussed the location and how that works for its purpose.   
Mr. Rowe answered questions by the board.  The utilities will be underground and new fiber connections to ensure 
its capability to stay operational during and after storms.  Also discussed was the day to day management of the 
center, which would be done in conjunction with the current management company of the sports park, SFM. 
Ms. Peace discussed the aftermath of the hurricanes and making sure this center meets the needs. 
Mr. Rowe discussed how he has been working with the EOC and other emergency management centers to ensure 
the indoor center will be outfitted for that purpose.  Mr. Bailey asked what size tournaments it can house. 
Mr. Sanders said the demand for indoor sports is great.  The number of tournaments is quite large and downtime 
can be filled with other events.   
Mr. Walsingham asked if the indoor center could be added on to or enlarged in the future. Mr. Rowe stated that 
the stormwater area is being moved which will allow for future expansion.  He said he has planned for future 
expansion in the initial plan. Also Mr. Rowe stated that parking is adequate as well as being able to use the school’s 
lot when not in session.  He also stated that new signage is in process and that it’s the design responsibility of the 
St. Joe Company. 
He stated that Griffitts Pkwy will ultimately end in the round a bout on Chip Seal Pkwy. 
No Motion Made. 

V. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
              A.    US EDA Grant Opportunity-ARPA, Mr. Dan Rowe & Mr. J. Michael Brown 

VI. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Mr. Rowe said that the push is on for upcoming events such as Beach Home for the Holidays, Beach Ball Drop, and 
Madi Gras.  He said that a market correction from covid is expected regarding tax collection, but all efforts are 
being made to ensure that doesn’t affect collections.  

VII. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
Ms. Pease asked for the board to make a list of projects to give to Mr. Rowe that can be valuated for the potential 
use of excess cash carry forward funds.  Mr. Rowe said that would be very helpful to take to the county to show 
the intended use of those funds and how it can improve and build our community.   He said he will take the boards 
list of projects, discuss with each board member, put a cost to each project, then bring a recommendation back to 
the board at a future meeting.  Ms. Pease also asked to look into paying down the sports park debt as well as 
having a reserve of funds for the sports park to handle future issues. She also asked for the cost of making the back 
four fields artificial as well as paving the road to those back fields.  
She also discussed remodeling the CVB office.  Mr. Rowe said that was being discussed including a large enough 
conference room that could host our board meetings.  Mr. Casto suggested moving the visitor center and offices to 
a newly built property at the foot of the west bay bridge.  
Ms. Pease discussed the beach access signage refurbishment.  Also, she asked for funds to be in reserves for post 
storm emergency fund needs.  
Also discussed was the additional landscape project. Mr. Rowe stated that he has an appointment with the 
architect and will get back with the board.  He also said he was told not to touch back beach road yet as road 
expansion will be taking place.  The gateways are the focus.  
Mr. Walsingham, and the board agreed, the intersection of Chip Seal Pkwy and Back Beach Rd needs to be brought 
to the DOT for the future growth and increase in traffic in that area.  
Mr. Casto asked if more funds for public safety can be given. Mr. Rowe stated that the maximum amount allowed 
by law is currently being given.    



TDC/CVB Combined Board Meeting 
Tuesday, December 14, 2021 

Page 4 of 4

VIII. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
NONE 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 
Sharon Cook, Recording Secretary 



 

 

 
 

 Tourist Development Tax,  Bay County, Florida 
 

 
Bay County Tourist Development Tax, Post Office Box 1230,  Panama City, Florida  32402 

Express Delivery:  840 w 11th St Suite #3000, Panama City, Florida  32401 
     Phone: (850) 747-5226      Fax: (850) 747-5212      

 Visit us at:  https://TDC.BayCoClerk.com/TouristTax/   Email:  TDC@BayCoClerk.com 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 Tourist Development Tax,  Bay County, Florida 
 

 
Bay County Tourist Development Tax, Post Office Box 1230,  Panama City, Florida  32402 

Express Delivery:  840 w 11th St Suite #3000, Panama City, Florida  32401 
     Phone: (850) 747-5226      Fax: (850) 747-5212      

 Visit us at:  https://TDC.BayCoClerk.com/TouristTax/   Email:  TDC@BayCoClerk.com 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 Tourist Development Tax,  Bay County, Florida 
 

 
Bay County Tourist Development Tax, Post Office Box 1230,  Panama City, Florida  32402 

Express Delivery:  840 w 11th St Suite #3000, Panama City, Florida  32401 
     Phone: (850) 747-5226      Fax: (850) 747-5212      

 Visit us at:  https://TDC.BayCoClerk.com/TouristTax/   Email:  TDC@BayCoClerk.com 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 Tourist Development Tax,  Bay County, Florida 
 

 
Bay County Tourist Development Tax, Post Office Box 1230,  Panama City, Florida  32402 

Express Delivery:  840 w 11th St Suite #3000, Panama City, Florida  32401 
     Phone: (850) 747-5226      Fax: (850) 747-5212      

 Visit us at:  https://TDC.BayCoClerk.com/TouristTax/   Email:  TDC@BayCoClerk.com 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 Tourist Development Tax,  Bay County, Florida 
 

 
Bay County Tourist Development Tax, Post Office Box 1230,  Panama City, Florida  32402 

Express Delivery:  840 w 11th St Suite #3000, Panama City, Florida  32401 
     Phone: (850) 747-5226      Fax: (850) 747-5212      

 Visit us at:  https://TDC.BayCoClerk.com/TouristTax/   Email:  TDC@BayCoClerk.com 

 




































































































































